
 

 

 

Dare County Tourism Board Meeting 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 
 

Curtis H. Creech Boardroom 
Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Offices 

One Visitors Center Circle 
Manteo, NC 27954 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2023 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order    
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
 
III. Approval of Agenda 
     
IV. Approval of Minutes from the January 19, 2023 Meeting  
 
V. Public Comments   
 
VI.  Steering/Chairman’s Report 

1. Tourism Impact Grant Extension Requests 
a. Town of Manteo 
b. Town of Nags Head 

 
VII. Budget & Finance Report  
     
VIII. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates    
 
IX.       Funding Priorities Discussion 
 
X.  Old Business  
  
XI.      New Business 
   
XII. Board Member Comments 
 
XIII. Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting    
 
XIV. Adjournment 
 
     
 



	

January 19, 2023 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

ATTENDING:   
In-Person: Mark Ballog, Ervin Bateman, Gray Berryman, Tim Cafferty, Tod Clissold, Tonia Cohen, 
Richard Hess, David Hines, Leo Holland, Ivy Ingram, Dennis Robinson, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  
 
EXCUSED ABSENCE: Mike Siers and Monica Thibodeau. 
 
STAFF: 
Lee Nettles, Executive Director  
Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  
Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  
Lorrie Love, Tourism Sales and Events Manager  
Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager 
 
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Philip Ruckle, The Coastland Times; Luke Halton, The OBX Way 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 
by a moment of silence.  
 
The Clerk swore in the following Dare County Tourism Board Appointees:    

Tod Clissold, Town of Manteo 
Tonia Cohen, Outer Banks Hotel/Motel Association 
Richard Hess, Outer Banks Chamber of Commerce 
Leo Holland, Town of Southern Shores 
Dennis Robinson, Member-at-Large, Hatteras Island 

 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel, presented the Nominating Committee's 
recommendation for Chair, Tim Cafferty.  Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor.  Hearing 
none, Mr. Holland moved to elect Tim Cafferty as Chairman.  Second by Mr. Hines.  The motion passed 
unanimously (11-0).  
 
Legal Counsel then turned the meeting over to the Chair.  
 
The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Vice Chair, Monica Thibodeau 
and called for nominations from the floor.  Hearing none, Mr. Robinson moved to elect Monica 
Thibodeau as Vice Chair. Second by Mr. Hess. The motion passed unanimously (11-0).  
 
The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Treasurer, Ervin Bateman and 
called for nominations from the floor.  Hearing none, Mr. Hines moved to elect Ervin Bateman as 
Treasurer. Second by Mr. Holland. The motion passed unanimously (11-0).  
 
 
 
 



	

January 19, 2023 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS (continued): The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's 
recommendation for Assistant Treasurer, Ivy Ingram and called for nominations from the floor.  Hearing 
none, Mr. Bateman moved to elect Ivy Ingram as Assistant Treasurer. Second by Mr. Berryman. The 
motion passed unanimously (11-0).  
 
The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Secretary, David Hines and called 
for nominations from the floor.  Hearing none, Mr. Holland moved to elect David Hines as Secretary. 
Second by Mr. Bateman. The motion passed unanimously (11-0).  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Ms. Ingram moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. Bateman. There 
was no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Holland moved to approve the meeting minutes from December 15, 
2022 meeting.   Second by Mr. Hess. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There were no public comments made. No written comments were received.  
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Mr. Bateman reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 
received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2022-2023 are up 7.27% compared to 2021-2022 actual receipts.   
 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES:  Lee Nettles: 

• Noted the upcoming Town Halls for the Long-Range Tourism Management Plan  
• Noted the upcoming VisitNC State Tourism Conference 
• Reviewed the marketing dashboard and visitation reports 
• Presentation on the Event Center progress (presentation on file) 

 
Lorrie Love reviewed upcoming group tradeshows and events held at the Soundside Event Site.  
 
Aaron Tuell noted media efforts promoting the Outer Banks. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  There was no new business before the Board. 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  The Chair and Board members welcomed the new members.  
 
Mr. Holland gave an update on Beach Nourishment in Southern Shores and noted that Kitty Hawk 
Elementary School approached the Town about upgrading the playground at the school to be inclusive 
and accessible to students and visitors. 
 
Mr. Hines noted progress on the new public safety building in Kitty Hawk.  
 
Mr. Hess noted the Chamber’s continued work on addressing essential/workforce housing. 
 
Ms. Cohen noted the decline in the number of J-1 students and how that will impact staffing at area 
businesses. Mr. Ballog echoed these concerns. 
 
Ms. Ingram noted progress on the sidewalk in front of the Wright Brothers National Memorial. 
 
 
 
 



	

January 19, 2023 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:   
• The Board set their meeting schedule for the third Thursday of each month at 9 a.m. in Curtis 

Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC   
 

• The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 16, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech 
Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC. 
 
 

The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned 
the meeting at 10:10 a.m. 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 



At their February 7, 2023 meeting, Steering Committee 
recommended granting an extension to June 30, 2023

to save paper, photos on file



Benjamin Cahoon 
Mayor 

Michael Siers 
Mayor Pro Tern 

Andy Garman 
Town Manager 

December 16, 2022 

Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 

Dear Diane, 

Town of Nags Head 
Post Office Box 99 

Nags Head, NC 27959 
Telephone 252-441-5508

Fax 252-441-0776

www .nagsheadnc.gov 

M. Renee Cahoon
Commissioner

Kevin Brinkley 
Commissioner 

Bob Sanders 
Commissioner 

This letter is to formally request a grant extension for Contract #RFTIG2122-03, Nags 

Head - Epstein Street Beach Access Replacement and Upgrade. The grant expires June 

30, 2023. A grant extension of one year through June 30, 2024, is requested. This 

project has been bid under NC formal bidding statutes. There were no bids received at 

the first bid opening. The project was re-advertised. One bid was received and that bid 

was rejected due to the proposal being over budget. The construction pricing was 

reflective of labor and supply shortages. However, we will re-bid the project as that 

environment is stabilizing. We have seen this more recently reflected in other 

construction bids received within budget ranges. 

The Town is appreciative of the grant award of $250,000 towards this project in order to 

replace and upgrade the existing beach access. Please contact me with further 

questions or any other information I can provide. The Town of Nags Head would like to 

thank the Visitors Bureau for its partnership at the Epstein Street public beach access, 

and for your consideration of extending these grant funds to June 30, 2024. 

Best Regards, 

Andy Garman 

Town Manager 

At their February 7, 2023 meeting, Steering Committee 
recommended granting an extension to June 30, 2024



$0

$50,000,000

$100,000,000

$150,000,000

$200,000,000

$250,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 6,272,045 6,004,609 9,370,541 22,183,138 36,428,842 102,003,266 110,890,945 138,805,084 45,403,850 22,618,642 11,523,953 6,505,201
2020 8,223,680 6,788,236 3,538,436 715,316 28,192,673 103,467,906 152,256,684 139,737,864 63,775,711 41,364,509 17,053,031 11,266,628
2021 22,515,577 16,833,409 28,050,784 39,424,885 71,629,217 127,947,319 159,994,974 158,280,320 73,112,498 43,787,109 11,394,032 18,096,294
2022 32,129,068 17,071,361 22,897,441 45,219,347 67,998,385 136,993,703 203,794,691 142,641,161 73,185,366 43,568,138 18,554,321 10,195,045

Occupancy Collections

December    -43.6%
CYTD 5.60%



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 9,232,116 7,938,346 13,993,067 20,152,467 27,895,551 39,212,117 47,545,995 44,023,260 24,552,170 19,796,005 12,708,341 10,994,527
2020 9,567,693 9,280,396 7,466,202 3,749,728 14,079,809 35,377,812 37,531,226 34,686,508 31,758,793 22,495,453 16,322,421 10,519,542
2021 10,669,210 9,647,064 17,851,725 26,101,925 36,273,162 48,603,545 55,983,285 45,615,512 38,713,169 29,131,584 17,621,266 15,637,654
2022 10,601,001 13,854,379 17,964,701 29,762,315 35,766,126 49,188,354 61,144,299 52,469,499 39,658,009 18,866,693 28,176,947 14,853,412

Meals Collections

December     -5.02%
CYTD 5.81%













































































TOURISM SALES & EVENTS | INDUSTRY RELATIONS ACTIVITY – FEBRUARY 2023 

Industry Relations: 

Leave No Trace Virtual Workshop | Thursday February 23 at 2:00PM: 
Want to learn more about how you and your partners can promote the Outdoor NC Leave No Trace 
principles before, during and after visitors come to your outdoor spaces?  Please join us for a 2-
hour interactive session with Leave No Trace staff.  From their 25 years of research and activations you 
will take away new ideas and have a chance to share your insights with your peers. Together we can 
keep North Carolina a beautiful destination for generations to come. 

Space is limited, Register here: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82064323038 

Future Trade Show Dates and Locations: 
Staff is currently scheduled for the following trade shows: 

• March 5 – 8, 2023: Visit 365, Asheville, NC
• May 20-24, 2023: US Travel’s International Pow Wow, San Antonio, TX

Restaurant Off-Season Hours: 
The Bureau is continuing to reach out to our local restaurant partners for their 2023 Winter hours. This 
list can be found on the homepage of outerbanks.org called Restaurant Winter Hours. If you’re 
restaurant is not listed or times needs to be updated, please let us know.  

OBX SoftShell Week| May 15 – 20, 2023: 
Bureau staff and Board Member, Mark Ballog along with a few restauranteurs have planted the flag to 
promote one of the Outer Banks delicacies, softshell crabs. Most restaurants are serving a version of a 
softshell crab dish during that timeframe, so why not proclaim it a weeklong event! We are currently 
working on the webpage buildout, an interactive map of participating restaurants as well as a chance 
to vote for your best OBX Softshell dish from your favorite establishment. No cost to participate, if you 
interest in joining in, please let us know. Stay tuned for more details.  

The Soundside Event Site: 
Attached is the current 2023 Events Calendar for the Soundside Event Site for your review. 

https://www.visitnc.com/outdoornc
https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F82064323038&sa=D&source=calendar&usd=2&usg=AOvVaw2UPgSS41uUEq20a1eq_Qvs
https://www.outerbanks.org/restaurants/outer-banks-restaurant-openings/


Name of Event Date of Event
Event Times (times may 

change as event draws 
closer)

Site Reserved

Outer Banks Bike Week Wednesday, April 26 – Saturday, April 29, 2023 11:00am - 5:00pm Tuesday, April 25 - Sunday, April 30, 2023
OBX Rod and Custom Festival Friday, May 5- Saturday, May 6, 2023 10:00am - 6:00pm Wednesday, May 3 – Monday, May 8, 2023

OBX Jeep Invasion Friday, May 12-Saturday, May 13, 2023 9:00am - 5:00pm Thursday, May 11 - Sunday, May 14, 2023
Soundside Fun Fair Thursday, June 8-Sunday, June 11, 2023 5:00pm - 10:00pm Tuesday, June 6 – Monday, June 12, 2023

Soundside Market (tentative) Wednesday, June 21, 2023 10:00am-2:00pm Wednesday, June 21, 2023
Soundside Market (tentative) Wednesday, July 5, 2023 10:00am-2:00pm Wednesday, July 5, 2023
Soundside Market (tentative) Wednesday, July 19, 2023 10:00am-2:00pm Wednesday, July 19, 2023
Soundside Market (tentative) Wednesday, August 2, 2023 10:00am-2:00pm Wednesday, August 2, 2023
Soundside Market (tentative) Wednesday, August 16, 2023 10:00am-2:00pm Wednesday, August 16, 2023

Sumospeed Beach Bash Saturday, September 16, 2023 11:00am - 6:00pm Friday, September 15-Saturday, September 16, 2023
Fall OBX Bike Week Thursday, September 21-Saturday, September 23, 2023 11:00am - 5:00pm Wednesday, September 20-Sunday, September 24, 2023

Garage Band Charities Friday, October 6-Saturday, October 7, 2023 10:00am - 6:00pm Thurday, October 5 - Monday, October 9, 2023
Outer Banks Seafood Festival Saturday, October 21, 2023 10:30am - 6:00pm Wednesday, October 18-Wednesday, October 25, 2023

OBX Brewtag Saturday, October 28, 2023 11:00am - 6:00pm Wednesday, October 25-Tuesday, October 31, 2023
The Wall That Heals Wednesday, November 15-Sunday, November 19, 2023 24 hours Tuesday, November 14-Sunday, November 19, 2023

2023 Soundside Event Site Schedule 



 

 

Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
 

PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: February 2023 
 

EARNED MEDIA 
 

Business NC | Jan-23 “Duck Research Site Preps Army for Coastal Conflict” http://bit.ly/3XlVHzz 
 
Carolina Traveler | Jan-23 “Stony the Road They Trodded: NC Black Heritage Tour Sites see .pdf 
 
Carolina Traveler | Jan-23 “Top 5 Dog-Friendly Beaches” http://bit.ly/3HJX4SX 

 
Our State | Jan-23 “3 Trails for Winter Birdwatching: North Pond Trail at Pea Island NWR” https://bit.ly/3I6Gxdk 
 
Main and Broad | Feb-23 “Regional Trail Honors African American Cultural Heritage” http://bit.ly/3lnq6jQ 

 
HGTV | Oct-22 “20 Best Small Towns to Buy a Vacation Rental Home” http://bit.ly/3x9H5Zw 
 
Travel + Leisure | Oct-22 “8 of the Best Small Towns in the South: Duck, NC” http://bit.ly/3190Wbg 
 
Tripadvisor | Jan-23 “5 Dreamy, Romantic Getaways in North Carolina” http://bit.ly/40Hkpxp 
 
TripSavvy.com | Jan-23 “18 Best Beach Towns in the U.S: Nags Head” 4 million subs. http://bit.ly/3x9aPFQ  

 
OUTERBANKS.ORG/BLOG POSTS 

 
Written by content partners based on 2022 Press Trips 
 
Noreen Kompanik | Jan-23 “Veteran Volunteers Help Locals and Visitors Land the Perfect Catch” http://bit.ly/3jOuMis 
 
Lori Bruton | Jan-23 “A Foodie Experience in the Outer Banks of North Carolina” http://bit.ly/3DXxsAW 
 
Lori Bruton | Jan-23 “Historical Firsts on the Line of Freedom in Manteo, North Carolina” http://bit.ly/40N3gCn 
 
June Russell-Chamberlain | Jan-23 “Mindful Travel: Ways to Connect with the People and Culture” http://bit.ly/3lqjLEs 
 
Kim Jackson | Jan-23 “Five Ways the Outer Banks Can Soothe the Soul” http://bit.ly/3HRJNrA 
 
Chadd Scott | Jan-23 “Fascinating OBX Year-Round Birding” http://bit.ly/3lrapZb 

 
CONTENT PARTNERSHIPS / IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Telegraph | Feb-23 The OBVB PR team assisted journalist Jacqui  Agate on assignment to develop a story to coincide 
with the debut of Season 3 of the Outer Banks Netflix series, comparing the show’s world to the real Outer Banks. The 
Telegraph is a national British daily broadsheet newspaper published in London by Telegraph Media Group and 
distributed across the United Kingdom and internationally. Print circulation is 325, 000 while online reach is 20,000,000+ 

 
Military Officer Magazine | Summer 2023 The OBVB PR team provided assistance to writer Teresa Otto for her research 
on aspects of the destination that would appeal to veterans and military families on the Outer Banks. She’s working on 
an article based on her visit for Military Officer magazine.  
 
PRESS TRIPS / IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
German Market FAM | Apr-23 Aaron is collaborating with the PR team from VisitNC to host a German audience press 
trip of five representing premium outlets for the nights of Apr 24-27 as part of a Raleigh to the OBX international flight 
then drive market experience.  
 



 

 

 
 
 
Camper Girl | Apr-23 The OBVB PR team is working with the magazine to develop a full review/editorial for the popular 
print magazine based on journalist visits around the brand’s annual Camporee, which will be held at Camp Hatteras the 
week of April 25-30. The female centric DIY camping trailer magazine has become very popular in recent years. 
 
 
Film FAM | May-23 The OBVB PR team is working with the VisitNC to host a film-forward press trip, highlighting the 
Outer Banks as a place where movies and pop culture come to life. 
 
 
Le Figaro | Jun-23 Aaron is working with the state tourism office on a neat opportunity to assist a French language 
publication in finding an Outer Banks story for those interested in the American travel market. Le Figaro has an 
impressive footprint. Le Figaro Magazine, circ.370,193 copies/1.35 million readers - Weekly supplement news & lifestyle 
magazine distributed with Le Figaro national newspaper. 

 
MEDIA MARKETPLACES 

 
Visit North Carolina Tourism Conference | Mar 6-8, 2023 - The annual Visit North Carolina Tourism Conference is the 
state's premier travel industry event. Bringing together more than 500 of the state’s tourism industry leaders, the 
conference provides opportunities to catch up on the latest trends and issues facing the travel industry, hear insights 
from industry experts and network with other travel and tourism professionals. 
 
Southeast Tourism Society | Apr 16-20 - Aaron is heading to Hunstville, AL to meet with some of the South’s top working 
freelancers and journalists on staff at leisure and trade publications. He’ll sit down with a few dozen media for one on 
one appointments to find opportunities to work together over the next year or two. 
 



GROUP
TRAVEL LEADER

THE

P E N N S Y L V A N I A  P A S T I M E S    |    R E S O R T S  A R E  W O R T H  I T    |    O N S I T E  I N  A L A B A M A

JANUARY 2023

MINNESOTA
F O R  Y O U R  C R E W  I N

There’s a lakeT
H

E
 G

R
O

U
P

 T
R

A
V

E
L

 L
E

A
D

E
R

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

2
3

W
W

W
.G

R
O

U
P

T
R

A
V

E
L

L
E

A
D

E
R

.C
O

M

go
SOUTH

SOUTH EAST 
TOUR ISM SOC I ETY

TOUR PLANNER

2023

http://www.grouptravelleader.com


24 2 0 2 3  S O U T H E A S T  T O U R I S M  S O C I E T Y  T O U R  P L A N N E R

SHINING

AWARDS
EXAMPLE

sts

The Southeast Tourism Society presented its 2022 Partnership Award to 
the African American Experience of Northeast North Carolina. The initiative 
is a cooperative effort of destination marketing organizations in six counties 
in rural northeast North Carolina to showcase the area’s African American 
culture and heritage for visitors.

The Partnership Award recognizes effective partnerships within the tour-
ism industry. Nominees demonstrate how the partnership has impacted their 
organizations and share plans for further collaborations.

The African American Experience of Northeast North Carolina was created 
with input from an advisory board comprising regional civic leaders, educa-
tors and historians. They identified 30 visitor-ready African American sites, 
including museums, monuments, parks, waterways and interpretive signs 
throughout the six counties. They also developed a self-guided digital heritage 
trail with its own logo, branding and marketing plan.

ship
PARTNER

AWA R D

3:14 PM - RACETRACK

G
AM

BL
IN

G
 P

RO
BL

EM
? 

C
AL

L 
1-

80
0-

52
2-

47
00

.

Groups have more fun at Oaklawn.

We start at the racetrack.

Sip a couple beers in the infield

under the magnolia trees, 

then grab a corned beef.

Winner buys a round at Silks,

then we hit the blackjack table.

This is our Oaklawn.

What’s yours?

R A C I N G   /   C A S I N O   /   H O T E L   /   S PA   /   E V E N T  C E N T E R   /   D I N I N G   /   O A K L AW N .C O M

BOOK YOUR GROUP

African American Experience 
of Northeast North Carolina

http://oaklawn.com/


36

 “Visitors from around  
the world travel to 

the Earl Scruggs Center to  
discover the life and career of 

the legendary banjo  
master and the region that 

shaped him.”
— STEPHANIE BARRET T, 
EARL SCRUGGS CENTER

long-term exhibits and special exhibits are available year-
round and are ideal for classes, business teams, community 
groups, family reunions, bus tours, clubs and other organi-
zations.” 

Travel planners can customize their experiences at the 
center to fit their groups. Many begin with a step-on intro-
duction to the area and center from a museum staff member. 
Docent-guided tours of the first-floor galleries are available. 

“On the second floor, guests can see a special exhibit 
gallery that changes twice a year, enjoy a special program for 
their group, tell their story in our oral history booth and try 
their hand at bluegrass instruments in our education room,” 
Barrett said. 

Other options include food, wine and live music per-
formances.

EARLSCRUGGSCENTER.ORG

Courtesy Earl Scruggs CenterCourtesy Earl Scruggs Center

NORTH CAROLINA’S 
EARL SCRUGGS CENTER

Three National Parks

The Outer Banks®

OF NORTH CAROLINA

outerbanks.org

One Incredible Destination

Cape Hatteras National Seashore

Wright Brothers National Memorial

Fort Raleigh National Historic Site

To learn more about our National Parks 
itinerary and other awesome group 
adventures, contact Lorrie Love;
love@outerbanks.org or 877-629-4386

http://earlscruggscenter.org
https://outerbanks.org/












Click & Subscribe at CarolinaTraveler.com

Museums

WINTER 2023

Explore 
the Heavens 
Planetariums and 
observatories

Celebrate 
Black Heritage 
Sites of inspiration 
and achievement

Ahoy, Matey! 
Set sail for maritime 
museums



Stony the Road They Trodded

18   CAROLINA TRAVELER WINTER 2023 | CarolinaTraveler.com  

Somerset Place State Historic Site,
Creswell

Colored Union Soldiers Monument, 
Hertford

Fort Raleigh National Historic Site, 
Manteo

Keeper Richard Etheridge, Manteo

Dismal Swamp State Park, South Mills

Historic Jarvisburg Colored School, JarvisburgPea Island Cookhouse, Manteo

NC Black Heritage Tour Sites Inform & Inspire
In addition to its fruited plains and purple mountains majesty, the Carolinas are home to lesser-heralded but equally 
important sites marking key pivots in American history. A special collaboration among nine North Carolina counties leads 
eager history lovers through forests, swamps, and sounds of the northeastern coast, where monuments, cultural attractions 
and heritage sites pay tribute to the African American heroes who committed their lives to grant education, work, and 
freedom to formerly enslaved persons in the South. In a region more widely known for beautiful beaches and charming 
waterfront communities, here are nine stops among almost 40 as part of the new NCBlackHeritageTour.com



   CAROLINA TRAVELER WINTER 2023 | CarolinaTraveler.com  19   

SPONSORED BY 
NCBlackHeritageTour.comStony the Road They Trodded

Colored Union Soldiers Monument, Hertford
A stone marker sitting atop an unassuming stone base 
honors the Black Union soldiers who fought in the Civil 
War. Enlisting at the behest of abolitionists like Frederick 
Douglass, African American recruits like Sgt. John Gordon, 
Pvt. Arthur Mixon, and Pvt. John Sharp guarded bridges, 
attacked Confederate camps, and organized efforts in 
the nation’s capital. The widows of those who perished 
fashioned this modest monument in 1910, making it one of 
the first of its kind in the United States.

Dismal Swamp State Park, South Mills
Sprawling from Virginia’s James River to the Albemarle 
Sound, the enigmatic and, at times, terrifying Dismal 
Swamp was once home to venomous snakes, wildcats, 
and other treacherous obstacles that thwarted the efforts 
of runaway enslaved people seeking freedom in the 
19th century. Eventually serving as the base of one of 
the nation’s largest colonies of maroons (runaway slave 
communities), Dismal Swamp is today a destination for 
avid hikers, bikers, kayakers, and birdwatchers. 

Fort Raleigh National Historic Site, Manteo
Follow the winding trail to the shores of the Croatan 
Sound, where a placard is inscribed with the heroic tales 
of the Black soldiers who fought in the battle of Roanoke 
Island. Stand on the same ground where a post-Civil War 
Freedmen’s Colony once thrived, sustaining nearly 4,000 
former enslaved persons who also served as army spies, 
scouts, and soldiers. Nearby you’ll find the statue of Richard 
Etheridge, the heroic Keeper of the Pea Island Lifesaving 
Station, and the Herbert M. Collins boathouse. Collins is 
known as the last keeper of the Pea Island station.

Hamilton Rosenwald School, Hamilton, 
and Reid’s Grove School, Gatesville
The Rosenwald School project launched over 5,000 schools 
and teacher housing units across the country with the 
primary goal of educating Black youth in the early 20th 
century South. In the quaint town of Hamilton, you’ll find 
a carefully preserved example undergoing renovation to 
become an interpretive landmark honoring the history of 
the Underground Railroad. Further inland in Gatesville, the 

Reid’s Grove School is open year-round and was named to 
the National Register of Historic Places in 2011.

Historic Jarvisburg Colored School, 
Jarvisburg
Before the spread of Rosenwald schools reached the North 
Carolina coast, African American youth were highly limited 
in education access. The one-room Jarvisburg Colored 
School operated from 1868 to 1950 and underwent several 
expansions in that period. Many former students and their 
descendants still inhabit Currituck County.

Mariners’ Wharf, Elizabeth City
The site of a three-week-long rescue mission to secure the 
freedom of nearly 2,500 enslaved people, Mariner’s Wharf 
also marks the location of the annual Emancipation Day 
parade. Rent a bike or dock a boat for up to 48  hours at no 
charge, where you can follow the same path that citizens 
of all races and ages tread to celebrate the end of the 
wretched institution of slavery.

Maritime Underground Railroad 
Waterfront, Edenton
Standing at the edge of South Broad Street in downtown 
Edenton, one might not guess that they were in the same 
space as abolitionists working to usher African American 
freedom-seekers to safety. Learn about the strenuous 
efforts, carried out by a clandestine network of Black 
watermen and other Edenton collaborators, to arrange 
safe passage aboard ships poised to travel north from the 
Albemarle Sound.

Somerset Place State Historic Site, Creswell
Across the street from the banks of Phelps Lake, Somerset 
Place provides an accurate depiction of 19th-century 
operations on a massive plantation. On one of the most 
extensive plantations in the state, over 300 enslaved 
people labored tirelessly to harvest rice, corn, wheat, and 
flax – cash crops central to the North Carolina economy.

This feature was sponsored by the African American 
Experience of Northeast North Carolina. Learn more at 
NCBlackHeritageTour.com

NC Black Heritage Tour Sites Inform & Inspire


	Cover
	AGENDA February 16, 2023 
	January 19 2023 Minutes
	Manteo Extension for CDTB
	NH Extension for Board
	Budget and Finance
	Meals & Occupancy Graphs December
	G2
	G1

	2
	3

	dashboard
	TOURISM SALES 
	2023 Soundside Event Site Calendar Feb Board Report.pdf
	Feb 23

	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 021623.pdf

	Public Relations
	FINAL_ Feb 2023 Board Packet-PR
	GroupTravelLeader_Jan23
	GTL January 2023_DE 1
	GTL January 2023_DE 58
	GTL January 2023_DE 70

	MainBroad_Feb23
	Screen Shot 2023-02-09 at 12.45.36 PM
	Screen Shot 2023-02-09 at 12.43.51 PM
	Screen Shot 2023-02-09 at 12.44.01 PM
	Screen Shot 2023-02-09 at 12.44.14 PM
	Screen Shot 2023-02-09 at 12.44.26 PM

	Carolina-Traveler-Winter-2023-Stony-The-Road-They-Trodded-extract




